

Hilliard Davidson Stixx Club

Bylaws

ARTICLE I ***Name and Purpose***

Section 1 – The name of this organization shall be the Hilliard Davidson Stixx Club.

Section 2 – The purpose of this organization shall be to promote the sport of lacrosse at Hilliard Davidson High School. This club's goal is to enhance the experience through activities including but not restricted to: fundraising (as approved by the Board and with regard to potential conflicts with other organizations, i.e., Athletic Boosters), family participation, general communication with coaching and the Athletic Department staff, advocacy, publicity, and other appropriate assistance as determined by the Board.

Section 3 – It is not the intent or purpose of the Club to replace parental communication with the Head Coach or coaching staff. Player-related issues such as academics, team rules, Varsity/JV status, practices, playing time, etc., are the appropriate domain of the Head Coach and parents should communicate issues/concerns directly as they feel necessary.

ARTICLE II ***Membership***

Section 1 – Any family with a current player on the Hilliard Davidson Boys Lacrosse Team shall be eligible for membership in this Club.

Section 2 – Annual dues charged per player, shall be determined by the Board in conjunction with the review and approval of the Season's budget.

ARTICLE III ***Board Members***

Section 1 – Club Officers: (President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer)

Section 2 – Parent Representative(s): A minimum of one and a maximum of two representatives from each grade level. Representatives shall be appointed by the President prior to the first General Membership meeting.

Section 3 – Representative to Athletic Boosters: Appointed by the President. Serves as the Club liaison and represents Club interests to the Hilliard Davidson Athletic Boosters. Also coordinates volunteer concession staffing by the Club members as requested by the Athletic Boosters.

Section 4 – The Board will have the authority to conduct the affairs of the Club on behalf of the General Membership. Members will be permitted input at any time through the parent representatives or any Officer.

ARTICLE IV ***Officers And Their Duties***

Section 1 – The officers of the club shall be President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer. The election of these officers shall be by the General Membership at the last meeting of the season. The office of the President must be filled by a member who has served at least one year on the board.

Section 2 – All officers shall assume their duties immediately following the last regular season meeting.

Section 3 – In the event of the resignation of any office, except the President, the vacancy shall be filled by an election of the Board for the unexpired term. A vacancy created by the resignation of the President shall be filled by the Vice-President. In the event that the Vice-President is unable to assume office, the office of the President shall revert to the election of a Board Member by a majority of the vote of the Board.

Hilliard Davidson Stixx Club

Bylaws

Section 4 – The President shall preside at all general meetings and Board meetings. The President shall also be an ex-officio member of all standing or special committees. The President shall sign checks in the absence of the Treasurer. The President shall act as an official representative of this organization and perform such other duties as are incidental of his/her office. If unable to attend a committee meeting as ex-officio member, the President may appoint another member of the Board to act as his/her representative.

Section 5 – The Vice-President shall assume the duties of the President in his/her absence and act as aide to the President.

Section 6 – The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings. Shall maintain custody of all documents and papers deemed necessary by the Board.

Section 7 – The Treasurer shall have charge of all funds belonging to the Club and shall deposit all monies received in such a bank or banks as shall be approved by the Board. The Treasurer shall make all disbursements; approved by the Board. The Treasurer shall make all disbursements; disbursements shall be made only in accordance with the budget approved by the Board. The Treasurer shall supervise use of the bank card assigned to the Head Coach. The Treasurer shall prepare a report reconciling Club accounts and noting its financial position on a monthly basis, providing the same to the Officers upon completion, and to Board Members at scheduled meetings.

ARTICLE V *Meetings*

Section 1 – Regular meetings of the organization shall be held during the school year or as scheduled by the President and upon proper notification. A quorum for Board meetings shall be at least a majority of Board members present.

Section 2 – General Membership meetings will be held no less than monthly during the school year, or as scheduled by and upon proper notification from the President.

ARTICLE VI *Committees*

Section 1 – Committees shall be appointed by the President.

ARTICLE VII *Parliamentary Authority*

Section 1 – “Roberts Rules of Order, Newly Revised” shall govern this organization in all cases in which they are not inconsistent with these bylaws.